GHSI-II RFP QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
1. Question:  Please confirm if it is acceptable for the Prime Contractor to obtain facility clearance after contract award given DSS’ requirement for a contractor to be sponsored by a government contracting activity (GCA) or another cleared company to begin the Facility clearance process.

Answer:  The Prime Contractor and any Sub-Contractor that is proposed to serve as an employer of any individuals placed in USAID positions must have a DSS Facility Clearance when the proposal is submitted.  This requirement is essential because of the need for the Awardee to assume responsibility for all active positions, including transitioning employees, within three months of award.  There is no certainty that an offeror can obtain a DSS Facility Clearance within that timeframe or at all.

2. Question:  If Security Clearance is needed at the time of the proposal submission, is it sufficient for the subcontractors in the consortium to have Facility Clearance if the Prime Contractor does not possess Security Clearance at the time of submission?

Answer:  If the requirements for a Small Business Award can be satisfied without the Prime Contractor serving as the Employer of Record for the individuals placed in USAID positions, then, yes, the Prime Contractor does not need to possess the DSS Facility Clearance at the time of submission.  However, please be aware that in a small business set-aside, at least 50% of the personnel cost of the contract must be for the prime contractor’s own employees.
3. Question:  Please advise if the Prime Contractor is expected to employ all staff as the sole employer or is it acceptable to have a major subcontractor(s) employ a percentage of the staff required for this project.

Answer:  As mentioned in #2 above, at least 50% of the personnel cost of the contract must be for the prime contractor’s own employees, since this is a small business set aside.  There is no restriction concerning who serves as the employer of individuals placed in USAID positions other than the requirement for equivalent compensation and benefits for all individuals placed in USAID positions, regardless of employer, with a view to transparent equity and fairness.

4. Question:  Please clarify if the total LoE is 90 FTE positions in each of the three years of the project for a grand total level of effort of 70,200.

Answer:  The actual LOE will be demand driven.  The government estimates that the LOE will be 90 FTE per year but the annual LOE may be less than or greater than 90 FTE.

5. Question:  Please confirm if it is still necessary for the Program Director to have at least five years of experience with the Contractor if the Contractor provides the proposed Program Director with the authority and ability to make binding decisions as it related to the contract on behalf of the Contractor.

Answer:  No, the Program Director only needs to have at least one year of experience with the Contractor.

6. Question:  I would like to know who is the incumbent for the Global Health Support Initiative I Contract?

Answer:  IAP World Services, Inc.
7. Question:  The solicitation mentions that the contractor must have a facility clearance.  Is this clearance required to bid, or can it be acquired after contract award?

Answer:  Please see answer to question #1.
8. Question:  Is this a set-a-side for a $6.5 million small business? Page 3 of the RFP mentions this will be a 70,200 workday level of effort which indicates that a business will no longer be in the 6.5 million category if they win.

Answer:  In order to submit an offer to this small business set aside, the requirement is that the firm is a small business at the time it submits an offer.  The fact that the award of this contract could cause a firm to eventually lose their small business status does not affect one’s eligibility to submit an offer for this contract.   

9. Question:  Page 13 of the RFP mentions a 90 person legacy staff; will the bidder who wins pick them up as a part of their staff or will they be sub-contractors? This has small business implications as well and impacts on 50% of the work will be done by the winner.
Answer:  Section C.4 Background of the RFP states:

“This solicitation will lead to a new award that can continue to provide support services to health programs worldwide.  The resultant contract will transition current positions under GHSI – I into GSHI – II for continuation over the next three years.

The Contractor shall provide human resource-based support services to USAID’s health programs worldwide.  These services are categorized as technical and professional in nature.  The Contractor performance will include:

· Transitioning and maintaining approximately 90 positions that are currently established and funded under the GHSI-I mechanism;”


Incumbent employees who choose to transition will become employees, or staff, 
             of the bidder who wins.  They will not be sub-contractors.

            In addition, as a clarification, the requirement is that at least 50% of the contract

            cost for personnel must be for employees of the contract be performed by the 
            Small Business prime contractor.

10.  Question:  Can there be multiple small businesses applying as a team?

 Answer:   Yes
11. Question:  In accordance with the National Industrial Security Program, Foreign Nationals cannot hold U.S. security clearances. Do you have any clarifying guidance on this?
Answer:  Historically, when overseas positions have been open to Foreign Nationals, the determination is made before announcement of the employment opportunity that no security clearance will be required.  The COTR reviews all requests and addresses these issues prior to requesting the Contractor to recruit for positions.
12. Page 99-100 of the RFP:  Section L.9.2(i), For the offeror and each major subcontractor list five to six (5-6) most recent and relevant contracts for efforts similar to this requirement. To ensure uniformity of information for conducting the reference checks, the offeror/subcontractor shall complete part 1 (Blocks 1 through 9) of the Contractor's Performance Report-Short Form for most recent 5-6 contracts and/or subcontracts.

      Question:  Will the Government provide the Contractor's Performance Report- 

      Short Form referenced above?

       Answer:  Please use the following link to access the Contractor’s Performance 

       Report-Short Form.    
       http://www.usaid.gov/iraq/contracts/pdf/iirii_rfp031002attach16.pdf 
13. Page 25 of the RFP:  Section C.9 states, “... with the exception of up to twenty (20) Washington placements who may be assigned to Contractor-provided workstations in the Contractor’s office. USAID will provide orientation and training on USAID-specific systems, policies, and procedures particular to the work to be performed by the Contractor, such as network, systems and applications to which contractor employees will have access as a part of their workstation configuration.  Remote Access to the USAID Network will be provided to those eligible employees working at Contractor-provided workstations, as well as to others, as necessary for the fulfillment of their terms of reference.”

      Question:  What are the Government’s configuration requirements for the
      above stated, “Contractor-provided workstations”?

Answer:  A “workstation” is a physical location where the employee is expected to perform.  This may be a lighted cubicle with standard accoutrements, such as counter/desk space for a computer, files and desktop work area and access to electrical outlets, telephone, and, perhaps, a LAN or WAN connection.  Typical USAID cubicles for professional level employees are either 64 or 88 square feet, but this is not a requirement.  The size differences within USAID Washington (i.e., the Ronald Reagan Building) are often a function of the total physical space available.  In that the Contractor will want to ensure productivity, morale and retention of its employees, the actual configuration of “workstations” for these professional employees will be left to the judgment of the Contractor.
14. Page 17, C.4.1 #, first paragraph, last sentence “The Contractor will provide the current institutional Contactor staff with the same or better pay and benefits now being provided under the GHSI –I contract.” Also referenced on Page 105, paragraph 2.

Question (a):   In order to ensure offerors bid the same or better pay now being
      provided, what step level should be used for each position listed in Attachment
      J.8?

Answer:  The RFP should have stated: “the same pay and the same or better benefits.”  

While the actual grade and step level equivalencies for each encumbered position will be provided to the Contractor during the transition planning period, for proposal purposes offerors should use Step 7 in all instances.

     Question (b):  What escalation factor should offerors use to account for  
     step/promotional or annual salary increases as referenced in H.5 (d)?

Answer:  The average step increase is 3% and the standard projection for the annual General Schedule increase is 3.5%.  Employees performing satisfactorily are eligible for an annual step increase on their original employment anniversary date.  The annual General Schedule increase varies and is usually effective on January 1 of each calendar year.
      Question (c):  What escalation factor should offerors use to accommodate   

      increases in base pay on the General Schedule as referenced in H.5 (d)?

Answer:  The RFP should have stated: “the same pay and the same or better benefits.”  

Please see response to question 14b above.
     Question (d):  In order to ensure offerors bid the same or better benefits now
     being provided, will the Government provide detailed level of benefits to 
     include: medical coverage (employer/employee share), paid leave, 401K, 
     retirement, dental, life, disability, etc.?  

Answer:  See GHSI I Contractor Employees Benefits ATTACHMENT 2 for benefits that the employees currently receive from the incumbent contractor and that the new contractor must provide to those individuals.
15. Question:  In order to ensure offerors provide comparable cost data, will the Government provide plug numbers for the following cost factors identified in the illustrated budget format and/or budget narrative:  Travel, Transportation, Per Diem;  Equipment and Supplies;  Participant Training; and Communications?  Reference Page 107, L.10 B, Proposed Costs/Prices.

Answer:  See revised Cost Assumptions attached to this modification. 
16. Question:  Could you please clarify while at least 50% of the work is to be performed by the small business entity, that 100% of workforce has to be employed by the “Contractor” meaning the small business that is to prime the contract.  Please clarify. 

Answer:  Please see answer to #2 above.
17. Question:  Does USAID envision the possibility to use Letter of Credit to finance the contract?
Answer:   No, direct reimbursement will be used.
18. Question:  Is the number stated in the RFP the total past performance references for the offeror and major subcontractor or must each offeror and major subcontractor submit 5-6 recent and relevant contracts?

Answer:  Each offeror and major subcontractor must submit 5-6 recent and relevant contracts.
19. Question:  On pg. 19, under C.4.1.4 Recruiting, it references that “application letter and/or email” is to be included in the application package for each candidate. Would a general cover letter suffice or is there a specific format and outline that the “application letter” would be mandated to follow?

Answer:  What USAID anticipates receiving is a cover letter or email referencing the position under recruitment, reporting the status of the recruitment, and identifying the attached/accompanying “application packages” for one or more applicants being proposed.  The application packages for each proposed applicant may be grouped or not under a single cover letter/email.  There is no specific format.  If desirable, a standard format can be agreed to following award during initial meetings with the COTR.
20. The last paragraph on page 19, followed by the first paragraph on page 20 states the following: 

a. “The CTO will review qualifications of candidates nominated before the Contractor forwards the application packages to the appropriate USAID Bureau, Office and/or Mission for final selection.  When the CTO may, from time-to-time, request the Contractor to forward application packages directly to the USAID office, then the CTO will provide point of contact and contract information including address, phone and email address to the Contractor.

b. The Contractor may be requested by the CTO to provide assistance to the requesting USAID Bureau, Office and/or Mission with arranging for interviews of the candidates, to include scheduling interview appointments, providing a venue for interviews and facilitating U.S. domestic and/or international conference calls for telephone interviews.” 

      Question (a):  If multiple application packages for candidates have been sent to
       the CTO for review, up to how many candidates could the CTO send to the 
      appropriate USAID Bureau, Office and/or Mission for final selection? 

Answer:  There is no limit; all may be forwarded.  If a candidate is proposed by the Contractor, it will be assumed that the Contractor has determined the candidate to be qualified and suitable for employment.

     Question (b):  Additionally, is the USAID Bureau, Office and/or Mission required 
     to interview each candidate that the CTO sends to the appropriate bureau for 
     each particular position?

Answer:  No; USAID does not require that each candidate be interviewed.  However, if the Contractor’s personnel policies do require this, USAID will not object.  Typically there is a “paper review” with those considered best qualified scheduled for interview.  On occasion, this process has resulted in a second or third round of candidates being interviewed.  Also on occasion, all candidates have been rejected without interviews, with this outcome usually followed by direct contact between the Contractor and the principal who rejected the candidates to obtain feedback and clarification about why none were found acceptable for interview.
    Question (c): In the event that the contractor facilitates U.S. domestic and/or
    international conference calls for telephone interviews, would the candidate be 
    required to be present in the contractor’s office/conference room for the 
    conference call/interview, or could the candidate be allowed to conference in 
    from a remote location?

    Answer:  A remote location is acceptable to USAID.  A telephone interview may be 
    only between the Candidate and the USAID interviewer(s).  There is no USAID 
    requirement for Contractor participation in the interview.

   Question (d):  Additionally, will a phone or face-to-face interview with the 
   appropriate USAID Bureau, Office and/or Mission, be required for each position 
   before an offer is made? (i.e. once the CTO reviews the application packages and 
   sends them to USAID for review, is USAID “allowed” to make a decision without 
   personally interviewing the desired applicant?) 

   Answer:  USAID does not require that an interview take place, but this may be a 
   requirement of the Contractor’s personnel policies.  A selection without interview 
   would be unusual, but conceivable if applicant(s) are known to USAID.
21. On page 20, the second paragraph states: 

a. “After the requesting USAID office has made the final selection, the CTO will notify the Contractor of the selected, qualified candidate and the alternate candidate and direct the Contractor begin the recruitment and negotiation process.”

      Question: Historically, what is the average number of days from when the CTO 
      first receives candidates to review to USAID office making their final selection? 
      Up to how long could this take? (i.e. how long is the process, in its entirety, of 
      The CTO reviewing candidates, sending selected candidates to USAID, USAID 
       interviewing the candidate(s), USAID making their final selection?) 

Answer:  The selection process is usually completed within 30 days, but is subject to delays resulting from interview scheduling difficulties and/or reference checking especially for overseas USAID offices.  

22. Pg. 24, C.6 Security Requirements, the first sentence states: “Under this Classified Contract, the Contractor must possess and maintain a facility clearance from the Defense Security Service (DSS) that will allow the Contractor to request the processing and issuance of secret and top secret clearances for Contractor employees. “ 

Question:  Assuming the contractor has clearance from the DSS to process and issue secret and top secret security clearances for Contractor employees, up to how long  could the entire clearance process take from start to finish? Historically, what is  the average amount of time to clear someone for positions under this contract? 

Answer:  If the Contractor simultaneously requests an “Interim and Secret Clearance,” an “Interim Clearance” is often issued within 2 – 3 weeks for individuals without police records, credit report issues, or other obvious discrepancies or issues, e.g., reported dual citizenship.  The actual “Secret Clearance” may take several months or more than one year.  The “Interim Clearance” is not an option for positions requiring a “Top Secret Clearance.”  A “Top Secret Clearance” for an individual who has not recently held a clearance at that level can take more than one year.  There have not been any requests for a Top Secret Clearance since inception of the former CASU in 2000 through GHSI-I.

23.  On page 20 in the first sentence of the last paragraph, it states: “Once the final selection has been made and the Contractor notified by USAID, a salary approval package for the candidate MUST be submitted through the CTO to the Contracting Officer BEFORE making an official offer of employment. “ Then the last line of the same paragraph states: “The anticipated time to be allowed for Contracting officer review is 2-3 weeks and should be taken into account in discussions with candidates.”  

Question:  Obviously, there are multiple steps in the hiring process. Historically, how long does the process take up to the point where the Contractor is officially allowed to give an offer of employment? (I.e. from CTO receiving the applicant packages for candidates / sending selected candidates to USAID / USAID interviewing candidate (S) / USAID making their final selection and alerting the CTO / Salary approval package submitted to the CTO BEFORE making an official offer of employment / OK from USAID and CTO to make the final approval)? 

Answer:  Applicant packages will be forwarded to the selecting official, or the COTR will request the Contractor to forward them directly, within one week of receipt by the COTR.

Selection is usually completed within 30 days of receipt by the selecting official of the application packages.

Within one week of receipt of a complete salary approval package, the package will be submitted by the COTR to the Contracting Officer for review, or the COTR will notify the Contractor of any issues with the package and seek resolution.  For example, an exceptional salary level may require additional clarification and justification as well as, perhaps, an additional approval level within USAID.  The COTR will alert the Contractor to these issues in recognition of the fact that the selected candidate needs to be kept informed and may be considering alternative employment opportunities.

The Contracting Officer can, and often does, use the full 3 weeks to review the salary packages and render a decision, which could be negative.  Contracting Officer decisions are issued by the Contracting Office directly to the Contractor, with copy to the COTR.

24. Question:  In addition, historically, how long does the clearance process take? (From the date the Contractor is officially allowed to give a verbal offer to the time the new hire has officially obtained the appropriate clearance and has been cleared to start work at the particular facility”)

Answer:  If the Contractor simultaneously requests an “Interim and Secret Clearance,” an “Interim Clearance” is often issued within 2 – 3 weeks for individuals without police records, credit report issues, or other obvious discrepancies or issues, e.g., reported dual citizenship.  The actual “Secret Clearance” may take several months or more than one year.  The “Interim Clearance” is not an option for positions requiring a “Top Secret Clearance.”  A “Top Secret Clearance” for an individual who has not recently held a clearance at that level can take more than one year.  There have not been any requests for a Top Secret Clearance since inception of the contract in 2000.

25.  Question:  Does this solicitation fall under the Service Contract Act?

 Answer:   No, this solicitation does not fall under the Service Contract Act.
26. Question:  Do you want any additional resumes of other types, aside from the three key positions mentioned?

Answer:  There is no requirement for any additional resumes.  
27. Question:  Can we get any additional information/specifics regarding the kinds and types of training need to be provided?

Answer:  Assuming this question is in reference to C.11 Training, USAID does not contemplate any specific training needs to be addressed by the Contractor.  An intended implication of C.11 is that USAID assumes that Contractor staff are fully qualified to perform the Statement of Work and do not require further training.  However, the Contractor may have need to train its employees on Contractor policies, procedures and systems, which will be at the Contractor’s expense.  As stated in the RFP, USAID will provide necessary training on USAID policies, procedures and systems.

28. Question:  How many positions, other than the 90 transitional positions, is the contractor expected to provide annually? 

Sec. C.4.1.3 says “The Contract contemplates approximately 90 full-time equivalent positions for three years, or a total level of effort of 70,200 workdays.”  So, does this mean that Sec. B7 is incorrect? It states “The contractor shall devote 70,200 workdays level of effort of direct employee labor for each year for the period specified under Period of Performance, in Section F.” 

Answer:  Section B.7 is incorrect.  The total three-year level of effort is estimated to be 70,200 workdays.

29. Question:  Is this a 3-year or 5-year contract?  
Answer:  This is a 3 year contract.  See Section F.2.

30. Question:  Sec. C4 states that: The contractor’s employees will receive varying levels of direct USAID support and assistance depending upon place of assignment, and will be recognized as a full member of the office team.  What kind of support and assistance will be provided? 

Answer:  The type and level of USAID Mission support will be defined in the associated Statement of Work for the position.  The variance is often a function of the size of Mission, with larger Missions having greater support capacity.  It is also often a function of how a Mission prefers to fund the support, with some preferring to fund and provide some support locally, outside of the Contract, e.g., at some Missions, housing is provided from the Mission “Housing Pool” with the lease paid directly by the Mission and not charged to the Contract.  In other instances, a Housing Allowance is provided through the Contract to the employee.  There is no specific answer to the question.

31. Question:  What are the “in-country logistics” referred to in Section C.4.1.7? 

Answer:  “Logistics” in this instance refers generally to operations dealing with the procurement, supply, and maintenance of equipment, furniture, housing, and with the movement, R&R and Home Leave, evacuation, and hospitalization, as well as with the provision of other essential services and related matters for Contractor employees assigned overseas.  C.4.1.7 states: “Coordinating in-country logistics with the appropriate overseas USAID office (Overseas).”  The Contractor, in most instances, will need to be in contact with the Host Mission contact person and probably the EXO (Executive Office) or GSO (General Services Office) to coordinate what will be arranged and handled by whom for the assigned employee.
32. Question:  Section D1 states: “The USAID Identity and the logo or symbol of the implementing Contractor must be posted at every static support position.”     Does this mean some kind of sign is to be posted at the workstation of every employee? 


Answer:  If the employee’s workstation is located within a USAID facility, no “USAID Identity” need be posted.  The Contractor’s logo or symbol should be provided to the employee for display in their workstation, with the intent of identifying the employee as a “Contractor” and their association with the Contractor firm.

If the employee is to be located outside of a USAID facility, then the employee’s association with both USAID and the Contractor needs to be identified by a display of appropriate signage.

33. Question:  Sec. B. Staffing Plan states that offerors are to “provide a matrix of all proposed personnel and the relevant skills and experience.”   Which people, beyond the 3 key people, are to be contained in this matrix?  

Answer:  All contractor personnel, key and non-key, full- or part-time, who will be supporting the contract are to be contained in this matrix to demonstrate the offeror’s understanding of the requirements and capacity to perform successfully.  This does not include the approximately 90 technical and professional staff.
34. Question:  Are acronyms included in the overall page count? 

       Answer:  Yes
35. Question:  Can the Branding and Marking Implementation Plan be included as an annex to the technical proposal? 

Answer:  No, the Branding and Marking Implementation Plan should be included as an annex to the cost proposal.
36. Question:  Is the offeror able to propose more core management staff in addition to key personnel? 

Answer:  Yes; the Offeror may propose the management structure it determines necessary to carry out the work of this Contract, so long as it includes the Key Personnel.  This structure should be reflected in the required staffing matrix.
37. Question:  Are there any restrictions on any incumbents currently providing staffing to GH with regard to their participation on this procurement? 

Answer:  No; there are no restrictions beyond the limitation to Small Business as the Prime Contractor.  However, potential participants should understand that if they become an employer of any of the Contract employees placed with USAID, an organizational conflict of interest situation may arise for that location of USAID such that the employing firm may not be able to bid on or participate in any other contracts or agreements with that USAID location.  For example, if the individual provided under the Contract is a participant in the design, acquisition or implementation process of a USAID project or program, their employer may not be eligible to compete for that project or program.
38. Question:  According to the RFP, “Small businesses may use other than small businesses for the purpose of subcontracting, provided that at least 50% of this contract is performed by a small business.”  Could USAID please clarify if the 50 percent minimum for the small business concern pertains to (a) the total dollar value of the contract; (b) the total dollar value of labor of the contract; or (c) the total Level of Effort of the contract?  If (b) or (c), please clarify whether the labor includes or excludes consultants.

Answer:  The RFP is incorrect.  Please refer to the answer to question #2.
39. Question:  Would a new entity created by a ‘joint venture between a small business and a non-small business’ qualify as a small business for the purposes of this bid and is it appropriate?   If it does, does the small business need to be in a mentor-protégé relationship with the subcontractor (non-small business) in order for the arrangement to be considered a joint venture?

Answer:  A joint venture between a large and small business would not be considered a small business and would not be eligible to submit a proposal for this RFP.
40. Question:  Would USAID list the information, records, and databases the awardee will receive from the incumbent contractor during the transition period and indicate the format for each –  hardcopy and/or electronic, including: recruiting databases; personnel/human resource databases; employment contracts; employee allowances and history; employee benefits; performance records/reviews; travel budget/travel history, etc. 
Answer:  The incumbent contractor is obligated to work with USAID and the Awardee to facilitate a smooth transition from GHSI-I to GHSI-II.  The incumbent contractor has all of the information described in the question and its transfer to the Awardee will be collaboratively facilitated.  The proprietary nature of recruiting databases and personnel/human resource databases, if meant in the literal information technology system sense, may not be accessible to the Awardee, but the data content as it applies to incumbent employees will be made available in hardcopy and/or electronic format, as will all other information.  
41. Question:  On pages 13/118 of the RFP regarding DOD Facility Security Clearance: Does the contractor need to have a secure facility clearance at time of award or just an application submitted for facility clearance at time of award?
Answer:  See answer to question #1.
42. Question:  Will GH Support Initiative II employees hired by the Contractor have access to some internal USAID websites and shared directories? If yes, would USAID please specify?  

Answer:  Contractor employees hired for positions requested by USAID will have access to the USAID network as part of the configuration of their workstation once they are cleared for employment.  Network access includes access to the internal USAID website, with its links to many other internal websites, as well as to the establishment of a personal directory folder within their employing unit’s network directory.  Each unit’s directory has one or more “shared” folders that will be accessible.  Personal folders are restricted to the assigned individual.  In most instance, the employee will also have access to “higher level” shared directories as well.  For example, in GH Washington and employee could expect to have access to their GH Division, Office and Bureau internal directories.  USAID will also provide a USAID email account and access to the Agency’s Microsoft Office Suite, including Outlook for emails.  Dependent upon the Statement of Work, additional USAID system access may be granted.  If needed, a Remote Access token will be issued to Contractor employees that will enable their access to the USAID network from any internet-enabled computer worldwide.
43. Question:  What does USAID expect to be the maximum allowable budget for this project?
Answer:   This is unknown at this time.
44. Question:  The current cost proposal instructions require respondents to make a number of assumptions when pricing out the contract, including estimating the countries that will be staffed, the allowances for staff (e.g., dependents), etc.   The RFP states that there will be a transition of 90 positions and that the Contractor will provide the current institutional Contractor staff with the same, or better, pay and benefits than is now being provided. Would USAID provide detailed requirements of how many employees to cost out, their salaries, their dependents, their locations, their personal travel budgets related to project work, use of business class airline tickets, and other data impacting both the level of effort and other direct costs in order to create a consistent basis for comparing cost proposals? 

Answer: See revised Cost Assumptions attached to this modification.
45. Question:  If the USAID DC-based staff will travel to other countries, will USAID be providing the number of trips per year and the duration of the trips for each staff? How is the bidder going to be able to budget for post difference, danger pay and per diems for each of these staff?

Answer:  See revised Cost Assumptions attached to this modification.
46. Question:  What are the current travel allowances for Contractor employees? Will this travel budget come from USAID or the Contractor’s budget? 
Answer:   Generally speaking, the same per diem travel allowance as Direct Hire employees.  See revised Cost Assumptions attached to this modification.
47. Question:  Page 23 of the RFP states that the Program Director will be an upper-level management official of the Contractor.  Please confirm that the phrase “charged to indirect costs” refers to the current status of the upper-level manager and that the Program Director’s time spent working on GHSI II can be directly billed to USAID.

Answer:  The cost for the Program Director on GHSI-II should be billed in accordance with the offeror’s accounting system. 
48. Question:  How many of the current 90 positions are top secret classified positions? 

Answer:  None have been identified as Top Secret classified positions.

49. Question:  What percentage of the employees will be part-time employees? For budgeting purposes, shall we assume that all of the 90 employees will be full time?

Answer:  For budgeting purposes, assume all will be full-time.  No more than 10% are ever likely to be part-time.

50. Question:  Attachment J.8 details the location and GS Grade.  However there is a large variance in salary rates within each grade.  For example one contractor may bid GS15-step 1 and a different contractor bid GS-15-step 10 which would create a $30,000 unintended pricing variance per individual.   Will the government provide the steps for each individual?  Or should contractors, for pricing purposes that all GS15s are Step 5 (the midway point)?  

Answer:  See answer to question #14a above.
51. Question:  Section L.10.B highlighted sentence on sick leave.  Is the sick leave that is to transfer to the new contractor carry a value?  What is meant by this, does the new contractor have to pay out sick leave when the individual ends employment with the contractor?

Answer:  Sick leave is the continuation of salary payments while on authorized sick leave and is charged against salary.  To the extent that an employee’s position is funded, payment of salary continues while they are on sick leave.  Thus, there is no “value” to sick leave separate from the funded salary budget line item.  There is no payout of any sick leave balance when an individual ends employment.  The only “limitation” on sick leave is that regardless of an individual’s sick leave balance, that individual cannot receive sick leave payments beyond the end of their employment.
52. Question:  Can USAID provide the number of individuals in the “core staff” other than the PD, PM, and the Financial/Budget Spec. currently performing the work?

Answer:  No.  To USAID’s knowledge the incumbent contractor assigns work to others on an as-needed basis, with the number actually engaged at any given moment ranging from none to no more than five.

53. Question:  Section C.4.1.7, bullet #4 references replacing equipment.  Is the contractor to provide equipment for staff located in the field?

Answer:  Yes; the Contractor is expected to provide equipment for staff, both in the Washington, DC metro area and overseas.
54. Question:  Which positions are new and which are continuing on attachment J.8?  Or how many are incumbent and will be transitioned and how many will require recruiting and filling?

Answer:  Offers should consider all positions as listed as “continuing.”  “New” positions are those that may be arise during the course of the Contract’s performance.  The current contract is dynamic, with recruitments and terminations ongoing.  There are now between 50 and 55 encumbered positions.  When and how many implied vacancies will be requested to be filled will be a function of demand.
55. Question:  Key Personnel – For the Program Director, it requires an upper-level management official of the Contractor, with at least five years of experience with the Contractor, e.g.,  Vice President, charged to indirect costs, whose decisions, either oral or in writing, or actions with respect to the contract, bind the Contractor.  

Because we are a new small business with less than five years corporate 
      experience, can the Program Director have less than five years experience with 
      the Contractor if it is a Vice President level with the ability to make binding 
      decisions?

Answer:  See answer to question #5.
56. Question:  Does USAID mean to have the Program Director ONLY charge indirectly even if the performance of the work as defined in the FAR and CAS is to charge such LOE to an identifiable project?

Answer:  The cost for the Program Director on GHSI-II should be billed in accordance with the offeror’s accounting system.
57. Question:  Under Section C.6, it states, “…the Contractor must possess and maintain a facility clearance from DSS”.  Does this mean that if at the potential bidder does not have a security clearance at the time of the proposal deadline that they are ineligible?  Or does it mean at the time of award?  Lastly, does this apply only to prime contractors or does it apply to subcontractors?

Answer:  The Prime Contractor and any Sub-Contractor that is proposed to serve as an employer of any individuals placed in USAID positions must have a DSS Facility Clearance when the proposal is submitted.  This requirement is essential because of the need for the Awardee to assume responsibility for all active positions, including transitioning employees, within three months of award.  There is no certainty that an offeror can obtain a DSS Facility Clearance within that timeframe or at all.

Due to this amendment, the specific changes to the RFP are as follows:
I.  COVER PAGE

1.  In Block, delete “April 28, 2009” and substitute in lieu there of “May 19, 2009”.

II.  SECTION B – SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICE/COSTS

1.  In Section B.7 Level of Effort, paragraph (a) delete in its entirety and substitute in lieu there of the following:

“(a) The contractor shall devote 70,200 workdays level of effort of direct employee labor for the total three years, specified under Period of Performance, in Section F.  This total level of effort is organized by labor category below.

[Labor categories to be inserted at time of award.]”

III.  SECTION C – DESCRIPTION/SPECIFICATIONS/STATEMENT OF WORK
1.  In Section C.4.1 # Transition, delete the first paragraph in its entirety and substitute in lieu thereof the following:

“To ensure continuity of services with the least amount of disruption, the Contractor will be given a Transition period to perform all tasks necessary to initiate full Contract performance as of 90 days from execution.  Incumbent contractor employees occupying a position should be offered employment under this new contract for the transferred position they currently hold, if they are deemed in good standing and have performance appraisals that at a minimum meet the job requirements.  The contractor will provide the current institutional Contractor staff with the same pay and the same or better benefits now being provided under the GHSI-I contract.”
2.  In Section C.5.1 Key Personnel Position, under Program Director, delete the first paragraph in its entirety and substitute in lieu there of the following:

“The Program Director will be an upper-level management official of the Contractor, with at least one year of experience with the Contractor, e.g., Vice President, whose decisions, either oral or in writing, or actions with respect to the contract, bind the Contractor.  The cost for the Program Director should be billed in accordance with the Offeror’s accounting system.  The Program Director will be the primary point-of-contact for the USAID CTO for all matters pertaining to the contract for which authorities have not been delegated by the Contractor to the Program Manager or Financial/Budget Specialist as evidenced in writing to USAID.  It will be the responsibility of the Program Director to obtain any Contractor organization internal approvals required for decisions taken by the Program Director if s/he does not have independent authority.  USAID will assume that all decisions rendered by the Program Director are taken with the full authority of the Contractor.  It is understood that the Program Director’s authorities may be limited by authorities reserved solely to the Contractor’s authorized contracting or acquisitions official, such as modifications to the contract itself.  All such limitations to authority should be disclosed to USAID in writing as part of the proposal.  While the Program Director must be readily accessible to the CTO by telephone or email, it is at the discretion of the Contractor where the Program Director will be physically located.  It is not anticipated that this responsibility will require the full time attention of the individual.”
IV. SECTION J – LIST OF ATTACHMENTS
1.  In Section J, add the following to Attachment J.9 – Cost Assumption Budget Example

Cost Assumptions:
 

Bidders are reminded to refer to Section C.4.1.1, where it states, with respect to treatment (i.e., terms and benefits), to maximize equity among the staffing mix found within USAID, positions will be based on US government rules and regulations for Personal Services Contracts (PSCs) for the following hiring types: USC, TCN, CCN and FSN and perhaps in some limited cases USRA. 

 
For guidance on the expected treatment of USPSCs, TCNPSCs, CCNPSCs and FSNPSCs, the Contractor should review ADS 495 http://www.usaid.gov/policy/ads/ , FAM 7400 http://www.state.gov/m/a/dir/regs/fam/3_7400/ and AIDAR, Appendix D and J http://www.usaid.gov/policy/ads/300/aidar.pdf . These references make onward references to additional information, most available online from the Department of State.  Bidders should review all references to assist with evaluating costs for inclusion.

 

This guidance, in addition to the Federal Travel Regulations (FTR) http://www.gsa.gov/Portal/gsa/ep/contentView.do?contentType=GSA_OVERVIEW&contentId=14161, will provide all information necessary to understand what must be provided to individual contractor employees and reflected in budgets.

 

Figure 1: Budget Template Example (See below) provides a generic budget example for individual contractor employees that provides for all commonly necessary expenses.  A generic budget template, such as this, could be used for all employees, with only relevant lines completed, e.g., certain listed line items are clearly only relevant to employees assigned overseas.  Discussions between the Contractor and the requesting USAID organizational unit will identify which of these costs will be funded through the Contract, which will be funded and addressed directly by the USAID unit, and which are not authorized.  Only costs to be funded through the Contract should be reflected in the budget.  The purpose for providing this template herein is to facilitate the understanding of all potential costs that should be addressed in the Cost Proposal.  Certain assumptions to be used by all Bidders are listed below, but it is a requirement for Bidders to further demonstrate their understanding of the requirements by addressing all relevant costs.

Bidders may assume the following levels of staffing by location and general types (Specialist and Generalist) over the duration of the contract:

    

    - Assume GS 13 - GS 14 salary range for Generalists

    - Assume GS 14 - GS 15, with 5% above GS 15 at the Contractor Salary Threshold (CST) for Specialists.

        - Overseas (O/S) without Washington locality pay, but with Post Differential, Post Allowances, etc.

        - Washington (AIDW) with Washington locality pay.


	           Projected Staffing Levels/Distribution
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	 
	O/S Spec.
	AID/W Spec.
	AID/W Gen.
	Spec.#
	Gen.#
	TOTAL#

	Year 1
	38
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	31
	 
	69
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	16
	 
	16
	85

	Year 2
	56
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	28
	 
	84
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	12
	 
	12
	96

	Year 3
	58
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	26
	 
	84
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	8
	 
	8
	92

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	

	O/S Spec. = Overseas Specialist, a highly skilled expert.
	

	AID/W Spec. = Washington-based Specialist, a highly skill expert.
	 

	AID/W Gen.  = Washington-based Generalist, an  experienced support person dedicated to the a specific program, especially critical for Presidential Initiatives and for TDY assistance worldwide.  Assumes steady decline with concurrent DH replacements.
	


 

Assume each will require one (1) desktop workstation computer and, for those who travel, one (1) laptop computer.

 

For the 50% overseas, assume:

    - Family size of 3, with one school age child with Education Allowance. 

    - 80% will be Sub-Saharan Africa, with only 25% receiving a Housing Allowance.

        - with Housing Allowance, include Security, Utilities, Maintenance, etc.

    - 20% will be Asia, with no Housing Allowance.

    - Each will have travel and allowances (to include shipping) for Assignment-to-Post, Repatriation, one Home Leave, and two R&Rs.

        - Assume Washington, DC, for R&Rs and San Franscisco, CA, for Home Leave.

        - Assume one additional International Travel per year to Washington, DC, per employee.

 

For the 50% in Washington, assume:

    - 80% will incur travel of 4 trips per year to Sub-Saharan Africa (business class) for durations of one-month each, with no rest stops.

    - One conference/workshop per year for each traveler, including fees.

    - Metro Subsidy

    - Long Distance Calling Cards

Generic Budget Template:
	Contractor Name
	
	Site Location:
	
	

	Address
	
	Attn:   
	
	

	Contact
	
	
	
	

	Phone
	
	
	
	

	Fax
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Order Information
	
	
	
	

	Task Order 
	
	
	
	

	Period of Performance:
	
	
	
	

	Labor Segment:
	
	
	
	

	Job Grade:
	
	
	
	

	Job Title:
	
	
	
	

	Job Location:
	
	
	
	

	Employee
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Budget Line Items
	
	
	
	AMT

	DIRECT LABOR
	
	
	
	

	Salary 
	
	
	
	

	Non Productive Allocation
	
	
	
	

	Vacation Carryover
	
	
	
	

	Payroll Allowances:
	
	
	
	

	Post Differential 
	
	
	
	

	COLA
	
	
	
	

	Danger Pay 
	
	
	
	

	Incentive
	
	
	
	

	Educational Allowance
	
	
	
	

	Housing Allowance
	
	
	
	

	Utilities
	
	
	
	

	Furniture and appliances
	
	
	
	

	Residential Make Ready
	
	
	
	

	Splits and Ceiling Fans
	
	
	
	

	Curtain Allowance
	
	
	
	

	Step up/step down transformers
	
	
	
	

	Generator + installation
	
	
	
	

	Generator Fuel
	
	
	
	

	Repairs and Maintenance
	
	
	
	

	Residential Security
	
	
	
	

	Contingency
	
	
	
	

	FICA/Medicare (7.65%)
	
	
	
	

	Total Direct Labor
	
	
	
	

	FRINGE BENEFITS (HWF)
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL
	
	
	
	

	TRAVEL COSTS
	
	
	
	

	•  Travel 
	
	
	
	

	Travel to/from Post
	
	
	
	

	•  International 
	
	
	
	

	In-Country / Regional
	
	
	
	

	•  Per Diem
	
	
	
	

	In-Country / Regional
	
	
	
	

	Washington
	
	
	
	

	•  Local (field visits)
	
	
	
	

	Post
	
	
	
	

	Washington
	
	
	
	

	•  Travel Other
	
	
	
	

	Medex
	
	
	
	

	Visas / Immunizations
	
	
	
	

	Transfers
	
	
	
	

	Subsistence & Per Diem
	
	
	
	

	Pre-departure and completion of contract medical exams
	
	

	TOTAL TRAVEL
	
	
	
	

	EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES
	
	
	
	

	Laptop
	
	
	
	

	Desktop
	
	
	
	

	Printer
	
	
	
	

	Office Furniture
	
	
	
	

	Basic/Special Software
	
	
	
	

	Other Peripherals (UPS, etc)
	
	
	
	

	Supplies
	
	
	
	

	Shipping (DHL)
	
	
	
	

	Admin Cost
	
	
	
	

	Total Equipment
	
	
	
	

	ALLOWANCES (Other)
	
	
	
	

	R&R 
	
	
	
	

	Home Leave
	
	
	
	

	Shipment HHE/POV
	
	
	
	

	Air (250 LBS)
	
	
	
	

	Sea (7200 LBS)
	
	
	
	

	Storage  (10800 LBS)
	
	
	
	

	Shipment of POV
	
	
	
	

	Consumables (2500 LBS)
	
	
	
	

	Excess Baggage
	
	
	
	

	Unaccompanied Air Freight
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL ALLOWANCES (Other)
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	CONSULTANTS
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	SUBCONTRACTS
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	OTHER DIRECT COST
	
	
	
	

	Mass Transit/Transit Subsidy
	
	
	
	

	Phone Cards
	
	
	
	

	Training
	
	
	
	

	Conference/Workshop
	
	
	
	

	Misc. 
	
	
	
	

	Office Supplies:  Communications, Postage, Shipping (Cellphone and Accessories)
	
	

	Registration
	
	
	
	

	Publications
	
	
	
	

	Bank Charges
	
	
	
	

	Core Admin Cost
	
	
	
	

	Advertising
	
	
	
	

	Total Other Direct Costs
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	TOTAL OF ALL ABOVE COSTS
	
	

	G&A
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	FIXED FEE
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL BUDGET
	
	
	
	


 

V.  SECTION L – INSTRUCTIONS, CONDITIONS, AND NOTICES TO OFFERORS

In Section L.10 Instructions for the Preparation of the Cost/Business Proposal (CPFF), Section B – Part 2 Proposed Costs/Prices, Illustrative Budget, delete the “Participant Training” line item.


All other terms and conditions remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
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